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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LIVE VENTURES INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2015
(unaudited)

September 30,
2015

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

$

Property and equipment, net
Deposits and other assets
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Total assets

$

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Income tax payable
Note payable
Total current liabilities

$

Notes payable, net of current portion
Note payable, related party
Contingent consideration from business combination
Total Liabilities
Commitment and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Series E convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 200,000 shares authorized, 127,840
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2015,
liquidation preference $38,203
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 30,000,000 shares authorized, 16,907,789 and
16,903,014 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2015 and September 30,
2015, respectively
Paid in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total Live Ventures stockholders' equity
Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

$

3,324,019
6,913,431
13,121,231
1,165,276
24,523,957
12,088,439
36,035
1,458,999
800,000
38,907,430

6,169,504
2,952,840
323,980
1,947,990
11,394,314

$

$

$

12,481,901
36,090
1,516,930
800,000
40,664,356

5,536,796
3,660,949
376,000
1,443,036
11,016,781

14,869,708
5,650,259
327,000
32,241,281

14,568,190
6,495,825
316,000
32,396,796

–

–

10,866

10,866

16,913
53,127,705
(46,489,335)
6,666,149
–
6,666,149
38,907,430

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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2,727,818
8,243,992
13,335,598
1,522,027
25,829,435

16,908
52,950,945
(46,665,003)
6,313,716
1,953,844
8,267,560
40,664,356

LIVE VENTURES INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended December 31,
2015
2014
Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit

$

Operating expenses:
General and administrative expenses
Sales and marketing expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other expense:
Interest expense, net
Other income
Gain on derivative liability
Total other expense, net
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income (loss)
Net income attributed to noncontrolling interest
Net income (loss) attributed to Live Ventures Incorporated

$

Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic
Diluted

$
$

20,104,434
13,694,559
6,409,875

$

2,365,873
2,996,750
5,362,623
1,047,252

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

(345,483)
12,553
–
(332,930)
714,322
413,980
300,342
124,194
176,148

0.01
0.01

1,917,368
2,187,477
4,104,845
(867,889)

$

(4,191,630)
28,505
83,580
(4,079,545)
(4,947,434)
–
(4,947,434)
–
(4,947,434)

$
$

(0.33)
(0.33)

16,905,098
19,219,449

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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8,007,052
4,770,096
3,236,956

15,111,162
15,111,162

LIVE VENTURES INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended December 31,
2015
2014
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash interest expense associated with convertible debt and warrants
Non-cash interest expense associated with loan fees
Non-cash change in fair value of derivative liability
Stock based compensation expense
Non-cash issuance of common stock for services
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Reserve for obsolete inventory
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Inventories
Deposits and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Income tax payable
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Expenditures for intangible assets
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net borrowings under revolver loans
Payments on notes payable
Payments on notes payable, related party
Payment for the purchase of the noncontrolling interest
Proceeds from issuance of convertible debt
Net cash used in financing activities
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

300,342

$

545,832
4,954
–
–
91,227
7,500
3,353
32,097

164,522
2,187,563
2,004,202
(83,580)
29,390
82,127
1,700
–

1,327,208
356,751
182,270
55
632,708
(697,589)
(52,020)
2,734,688

(555,591)
75,546
673,857
265
(1,118,797)
183,453
–
(1,302,777)

–
(94,439)
(94,439)

(20,714)
(28,798)
(49,512)

540,354
(238,836)
(845,566)
(1,500,000)
–
(2,044,048)

–
(346,182)
–
–
100,000
(246,182)

596,201

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period

(4,947,434)

(1,598,471)

2,727,818

8,114,682

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period

$

3,324,019

$

6,516,211

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

$
$

345,483
466,000

$
$

16,612
–

Noncash financing and investing activities:
Recognition of contingent beneficial conversion feature
Conversion of notes payable and accrued interest into common stock
Accrued and unpaid dividends
Note payable issued for purchase of noncontrolling interest

$
$
$
$

–
–
480
500,000

$
$
$
$

100,000
635,756
483
–

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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LIVE VENTURES INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(unaudited)
Note 1: Organization and Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Live Ventures, Incorporated, a Nevada corporation, and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Company”). The Company is a holding company for diversified businesses. The Company promoted online
marketing solutions to small and medium businesses to help them boost customer awareness, gain visibility and manage their online
presence. The Company also offered affordable acquisition services to the small business segment though the Instant Agency suite of
products and services. The Company continues to actively develop, revise and evaluate its products, services and its marketing strategies in
its businesses. Under the Live Ventures brand the Company seeks opportunities to acquire profitable and well-managed companies. The
Company believes that with the proper positioning and its investment capital these companies can become very profitable. With its recent
acquisition of Marquis Industries, Inc., the Company became engaged in the manufacture and sale of carpet and the sale of vinyl and wood
floorcoverings.
Effective October 7, 2015, the Company changed its corporate name from LiveDeal, Inc. to Live Ventures Incorporated.
The accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for audited financial statements. In the opinion of the Company’s management,
this interim information includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the
results for the interim periods. The results of operations for the three months ended December 31, 2015 are not necessarily indicative of the
results to be expected for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2016. The accompanying note disclosures related to the interim financial
information included herein are also unaudited. This financial information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes thereto as of September 30, 2015 and for the fiscal year then ended included in the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on January 13, 2016.
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Significant estimates and assumptions have been made by management throughout the preparation of the condensed
consolidated financial statements, including in conjunction with establishing allowances for customer refunds, non-paying customers,
dilution and fees, analyzing the recoverability of the carrying amount of intangible assets, evaluating the merits of pending litigation,
estimating forfeitures of stock-based compensation, valuing beneficial conversion features in convertible debt, and evaluating the
recoverability of deferred tax assets. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
All data for common stock, options and warrants have been adjusted to reflect the 3-for-1 forward stock split (which took effect on
February 11, 2014) for all periods presented. In addition, all common stock prices, and per share data for all periods presented have been
adjusted to reflect the 3-for-1 forward stock split.
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Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements represent the consolidated financial position and results of operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries as follows:
Company
Live Ventures, Inc.
Telco Billing, Inc.
Velocity Marketing Concepts, Inc.
Velocity Local, Inc.
Modern Everyday, Inc.
Modern Everyday, LLC
Super Nova, LLC
Live Goods, LLC
Marquis Affiliated Holdings, LLC*
Marquis Industries, Inc.
A-O Industries, LLC
Astro Carpet Mills, LLC
Constellation Industries, LLC
S F Commercial Properties, LLC

Percentage
Owned
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Parent
Live Ventures Incorporated
Live Ventures Incorporated
Live Ventures Incorporated
Live Ventures Incorporated
Live Ventures Incorporated
Modern Everyday, Inc.
Modern Everyday, Inc.
Live Ventures Incorporated
Live Ventures, Inc.
Marquis Affiliated Holdings, LLC
Marquis Industries, Inc.
Marquis Industries, Inc.
Marquis Industries, Inc.
Marquis Industries, Inc.

The results of operations for Marquis Industries, Inc. have only been included since the date of acquisition of July 6, 2015. All
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
* Effective November 30, 2015, the Company acquired the remaining 20% interest.
Noncontrolling Interest
On July 6, 2015, the Company, through MAH, acquired 80% interest in Marquis Industries, Inc. The transaction was accounted for under
the acquisition method of accounting, with the purchase price allocated based on the fair value of the individual assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.
The Company follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 810,
“Consolidation,” which governs the accounting for and reporting of noncontrolling interests (“NCIs”) in partially owned consolidated
subsidiaries and the loss of control of subsidiaries. Certain provisions of this standard indicate, among other things, that NCIs be treated as
a separate component of equity, not as a liability, that increases and decreases in the parent’s ownership interest that leave control intact be
treated as equity transactions rather than as step acquisitions or dilution gains or losses, and that losses of a partially owned consolidated
subsidiary be allocated to the NCI even when such allocation might result in a deficit balance. This standard also required changes to
certain presentation and disclosure requirements.
The net income attributed to the NCI is separately designated in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Losses
attributable to the NCI in a subsidiary may exceed the NCI’s interests in the subsidiary’s equity. The excess attributable to the NCI is
attributed to those interests. The NCI shall continue to attribute its share of losses even if that attribution results in a deficit NCI balance.
Effective November 30, 2015, the Company purchased the remaining 20% interest in Marquis for $2,000,000 of which $1,500,000 was
paid in cash and a note payable of $500,000 due on February 1, 2016 with interest at 2% per annum. In accordance with ASC 810, the
excess of the noncontrolling interest at November 30, 2015 over the $2,000,000 purchase price of $78,038 has been recorded directly to
additional paid in capital. The $500,000 note payable was paid on January 20, 2016.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of the inventory’s cost (first in, first out basis) or the current market price of the inventory. Management
compares the cost of inventory with its market value and an allowance is made to write down inventory to market value, if lower. At
December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2015, the allowance for obsolete inventory was $434,375 and $402,278, respectively.
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Revenue Recognition
Directory Services
Revenue is billed and recognized monthly for services subscribed in that specific month. The Company has historically utilized outside
billing companies to perform billing services through direct ACH withdrawals.
For billings via ACH withdrawals, revenue is recognized when such billings are accepted. For billings via LECs, the Company recognizes
revenue based on net billings accepted by the LECs. Due to the periods of time for which adjustments may be reported by the LECs and the
billing companies, the Company estimates and accrues for dilution and fees reported subsequent to year-end for initial billings related to
services provided for periods within the fiscal year. Such dilution and fees are reported in cost of services in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Customer refunds are recorded as an offset to gross revenue.
Revenue for billings to certain customers that are billed directly by the Company and not through the outside billing companies is
recognized based on estimated future collections which is reasonably assured. The Company continuously reviews this estimate for
reasonableness based on its collection experience.
Deals Revenue
The Company recognizes revenue from its sales through its strategic publishing partners of discounted goods and services offered by its
merchant clients (“Deals”) when the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery has occurred; the
selling price is fixed or determinable; and collectability is reasonably assured. These criteria are met when the number of customers who
purchase the daily deal exceeds the predetermined threshold, where, if applicable, the Deal has been electronically delivered to the
purchaser and a listing of Deals sold has been made available to the merchant. At that time, the Company's obligations to the merchant, for
which it is serving as an agent, are substantially complete. The Company's remaining obligations, which are limited to remitting payment to
the merchant, are inconsequential or perfunctory. The Company records as revenue an amount equal to the net amount it retains from the
sale of Deals after paying an agreed upon percentage of the purchase price to the featured merchant excluding any applicable taxes.
Revenue is recorded on a net basis because the Company is acting as an agent of the merchant in the transaction.
Deferred Revenue
In some instances, the Company receives payments in advance of rendering services, whereupon such revenues are deferred until the
related services are rendered. There is no deferred revenue as of December 31, 2105 and September 30, 2015.
Product Revenue
The Company derives product revenue primarily from direct revenue and fulfillment partner revenue from product sales. Product revenue is
recognized when the following revenue recognition criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (2) delivery has
occurred or the service has been provided; (3) the selling price or fee revenue earned is fixed or determinable; and (4) collection of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured.
The Company evaluates the criteria outlined in ASC Topic 605-45, Principal Agent Considerations, in determining whether it is
appropriate to record the gross amount of product sales and related costs or the net amount earned as commissions. When the Company is
the primary obligor in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk, has latitude in establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or has several but
not all of these indicators, revenue is recorded gross. If we are not the primary obligor in the transaction and amounts earned are
determined using a fixed percentage, revenue is recorded on a net basis. Currently, all direct revenue and fulfillment partner revenue is
recorded on a gross basis, as the Company is the primary obligor. The Company presents revenue net of sales taxes.
Manufacturing Revenue
Revenues from the sale of carpet products, including shipping and handling amounts, are recognized when the following criteria are met:
there is persuasive evidence that a sales agreement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the price to the buyer is
fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. Delivery is not considered to have occurred until the customer takes title to
the goods and assumes the risks and rewards of ownership, which is generally on the date of shipment. At the time revenue is recognized,
the Company records a provision for the estimated amount of future returns based primarily on historical experience and any known trends
or conditions that exist at the time revenue is recognized. Revenues are recorded net of taxes collected from customers.
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Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which these temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation
allowance would be provided for those deferred tax assets for which if it is more likely than not that the related benefit will not be realized.
The Company classifies tax-related penalties and interest as a component of income tax expense for financial statement presentation. For
the period from October 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015, Marquis Industries, Inc. and subsidiaries is required to file a separate income tax
return, and therefore, the income generated by these subsidiaries cannot be offset against the Company’s net operating losses.
Segment Reporting
ASC Topic 280, “Segment Reporting,” requires use of the “management approach” model for segment reporting. The management
approach model is based on the way a company’s management organizes segments within the company for making operating decisions and
assessing performance. The Company determined it has three reportable segments (See Note 15).
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company evaluates all of its agreements to determine if such instruments have derivatives or contain features that qualify as embedded
derivatives. For derivative financial instruments that are accounted for as liabilities, the derivative instrument is initially recorded at its fair
value and is then re-valued at each reporting date, with changes in the fair value reported in the consolidated statements of operations. For
stock-based derivative financial instruments, the Company uses a weighted average Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to value
the derivative instruments at inception and on subsequent valuation dates. The classification of derivative instruments, including whether
such instruments should be recorded as liabilities or as equity, is evaluated at the end of each reporting period. Derivative instrument
liabilities are classified in the balance sheet as current or non-current based on whether or not net-cash settlement of the derivative
instrument could be required within 12 months of the balance sheet date. As of December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2015, the Company
had no financial instruments with derivative feature.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
No accounting standards or interpretations issued recently are expected to a have a material impact on our consolidated financial position,
operations or cash flows.
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Note 3: Balance Sheet Information
Balance sheet information is as follows:
December 31,
2015
Receivables, current, net:
Accounts receivable, current
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

$
$

Receivables, long term, net:
Accounts receivable, long term
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

$
$

Total receivables, net:
Gross receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

$
$

Components of allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows:
Allowance for dilution and fees on amounts due from billing aggregators
Allowance for customer refunds
Allowance for other trade receivables

$

$
Inventory
Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

$

Less: Obsolescence reserve
$
Property and equipment, net:
Land and improvements
Building and improvements
Transportation equipment
Machinery and equipment
Furnishings and fixtures
Office, computer equipment and other

$

Less: Accumulated depreciation
$
Intangible assets, net:
Domain name and marketing related intangibles
Website and technology related intangibles
Purchased software

$

Less: Accumulated amortization
$
Accrued liabilities:
Accrued payroll and bonuses
Deferred revenue
Accrued software costs
Accrued expenses - other

$

$
10

September 30,
2015

7,679,919
(766,488)
6,913,431

$

344,572
(344,572)
–

$

8,024,491
(1,111,060)
6,913,431

$

1,063,617
(733)
48,176
1,111,060

$

6,726,437
833,730
5,995,439
13,555,606
(434,375)
13,121,231

$

688,000
4,202,000
77,419
7,734,360
211,700
251,313
13,164,792
(1,076,353)
12,088,439

$

18,957
25,300
1,500,000
1,544,257
(85,258)
1,458,999

$

734,534
243,082
1,500,000
475,224
2,952,840

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

9,007,127
(763,135)
8,243,992

344,572
(344,572)
–

9,351,699
(1,107,707)
8,243,992

1,063,617
1,715
42,375
1,107,707

6,715,298
836,837
6,185,741
13,737,876
(402,278)
13,335,598

687,999
4,202,000
77,419
7,676,561
211,701
244,674
13,100,354
(618,453)
12,481,901

18,957
25,300
1,500,000
1,544,257
(27,327)
1,516,930

731,782
243,082
1,500,000
1,186,085
3,660,949

Note 4: Intangible Assets
During the year ended September 30, 2015, the Company purchased software for $1,500,000. This software is being amortized over 84
months which is the term that the software is expected to produce revenue. The Company has the option to pay for the software in cash or
in 800,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company has until June 30, 2016 to pay for the software either in cash or common
stock. At December 31, 2015, the Company had not made any payments towards the purchase of this software and has reflected the
$1,500,000 purchase price for the software in accrued liabilities in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet.
The following summarizes estimated future amortization expense related to intangible assets for the twelve month periods ending
December 31:
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

$

$

226,721
216,112
214,286
214,286
214,286
373,308
1,458,999

Total amortization expense related to intangible assets was $57,931 and $149,000 for the three months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
Note 5: Notes Payable
Revolver Loan and Term Loan
In connection with the purchase of Marquis Industries Inc., the Company entered into an agreement with Bank of America for a Term and
Revolving Loan for approximately $7.8 million for the term component and approximately $15 million for the revolving component. As
part of the Bank of America Revolving Loan, Marquis Industries may borrow up to $15 million (based on eligibility).
The Bank of America term loan bears interest at a variable rate based on a base rate plus a margin. The current base rate is the greater of (a)
Bank of America prime rate, (b) the current federal funds rate plus 0.50%, or (c) 30-day LIBOR plus 1.00% plus the margin, which varies,
depending on the fixed coverage ratio table below. Levels I – IV which determine the interest rate to be charge is based on the fixed charge
coverage ratio.
Fixed Coverage Ratio Table

Level
I
II
III
IV

Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio
>2.00 to 1.00
<2.00 to 1.00 but >1.50 to 1.00
< 1.50 to 1.00 but >1.20 to 1.00
< 1.2 to 1.00

Base Rate
Revolver Loan
0.50%
0.75%
1.00%
1.25%
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LIBOR
Revolver
Loans
1.50%
1.75%
2.00%
2.25%

Base Rate
Term Loans
0.75%
1.00%
1.25%
1.50%

LIBOR Term
Loans
1.75%
2.00%
2.25%
2.5%

The loans are cross-collateralized with substantially all real and personal property of Marquis Industries, Inc. As of December 31, 2015, the
Company was at Level II with the fixed coverage ratio.
Monthly payments to Bank of America are approximately $79,000 plus accrued interest. The term component is due and payable in July
2020, which is when the revolving component terminates.
The loans contain certain covenants that require, among other things, for the Company to maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of at least
1.05 to 1. Since the loan was obtained on July 6, 2015, the Company still has until July 5, 2016 to be in compliance with this ratio.
February 2014 Convertible Note Transaction
On February 27, 2014, the Company issued a one year convertible note to an unaffiliated, non-institutional third party in the principal
amount of $323,595. The note (i) is unsecured, (ii) bears interest at the rate of six percent per annum, and (iii) was issued without any
original issue discount.
The principal is convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time and from time-to-time at the instance of either the
Company or the holder. The per-share conversion price is an amount equal to ninety percent (90%) of the 10-day volume weighted average
closing bid price for the Company’s common stock, as reported by The NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc. for the ten (10) trading days
immediately preceding the date of the notice of conversion, subject to downward adjustment in the event that the Company issues any
securities at a price per share lower than the then-current conversion price; provided, however, that in no event shall the conversion price
per share be less than $1.00. The Company provided the holder with certain negative covenants and events of default, each standard for
transactions of this nature.
Due to the “reset” and “dilutive issuance” clause in this note relating to the conversion price from dilutive share issuance, the Company has
determined that the conversion feature is considered a derivative liability for the Company.
The Company determined an initial derivative liability value of $139,852, which is recorded as a derivative liability as of the date of
issuance while also recording an $139,852 debt discount on its balance sheet in relation to the bifurcation of the embedded conversion
options of the note. The debt discount is being amortized over the one year term. The note was repaid during the three months ended
December 31, 2014, therefore the remaining unamortized debt discount of $57,665 was written off to interest expense. Also, as a result of
the note being repaid, the derivative liability associated with this convertible note was reduced to $0. The Company recorded $83,580 of
non-cash “change in fair value of derivative” income during the three months ended December 31, 2014.
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ICG Convertible Note Transaction
On January 23, 2014, the Company issued a note to Isaac Capital Group (“ICG”), a related party, in the principal amount of $500,000.
Because the conversion price of $2.29 was less than the stock price, this gave rise to a beneficial conversion feature valued at $500,000.
The Company recognized this beneficial conversion feature as a debt discount and additional paid in capital. The debt discount is being
amortized over the one year term. On December 3, 2014, ICG converted the note into 674,370 shares of common stock, therefore the
remaining debt discount of $158,219 was written off and recognized as interest expense. In addition, upon the conversion of note, the
Company issued to ICG a warrant to acquire 674,370 additional shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.95 per
share. The fair value of the warrants issued in connection with the conversion of note was $1,853,473 and was immediately recognized as
interest expense.
Kingston Convertible Note Transaction ($10 Million Line of Credit)
On January 7, 2014, the Company entered into a Note Purchase Agreement (the “Kingston Purchase Agreement”) with Kingston
Diversified Holdings LLC (“Kingston”), pursuant to which the Investor agreed to purchase for cash up to $5,000,000 in aggregate principal
amount of the Company’s Convertible Notes (“Notes”). The Kingston Purchase Agreement and the Notes, which are unsecured, provide
that all amounts payable by the Company to Kingston under the Notes will be due and payable on the second (2nd) anniversary of the date
of the Kingston Purchase Agreement (the “Maturity Date”). The Kingston Purchase Agreement provides for a 5% discount to the note
amount, interest at 8% per annum and convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock equal to 70% of the lesser of: (i) the closing
bid price of the common stock on the date of the Kingston Purchase Agreement (i.e., $3.12 per share); or (ii) the 10-day volume weighted
average closing bid price for the common stock, as listed on NASDAQ for the 10 business days immediately preceding the date of
conversion (the “Average Price”); provided, however, that in no event will the Average Price per share be less than $0.33.
On October 29, 2014, the Company entered into an amended convertible note purchase agreement with Kingston whereby the Company
and Kinston agreed to (i) increase the maximum principal amount of the notes from $5 million to $10 million in principal amount, (ii)
eliminate the original issue discount provision of the agreement and replaces it with an execution payment equal to 5% of the maximum
loan amount, and (iii) provides certain additional adjustments to the note conversion price.
On October 16, 2014, the Company issued a Note to Kingston in the principal amount of $100,000. Because the conversion price of $0.79
was less than the stock price on the date of issuance, this gave rise to a beneficial conversion feature valued at $100,000. The Company
recognized this beneficial conversion feature as a debt discount and additional paid in capital. The debt discount is being amortized over
the one year term. On November 17, 2014, Kingston converted the note into 127,008 shares of common stock, therefore the debt discount
of $100,000 was written off and recognized as interest expense.
In addition, as a result of the October 29, 2014 amendment, the Company was required to issue to Kingston, the original issue discount
payment equal to 5% of the maximum loan in shares of the Company’s common stock based upon the conversion price of the first
conversion which was $0.79 per shares. The Company issued 630,252 shares of common stock that had a fair value of $2,004,202 which
was immediately recognized as interest expense.
Credit line
In connection with the purchase of Modern Everyday, Inc., the Company assumed a credit line from a bank. The credit line is collateralized
by all the assets of Modern Everyday, Inc., accrues interest at prime plus 2% and is due on January 1, 2024.
Notes payable as of December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2015 consisted of the following:
December 31,
2015
Base Rate Revolver Loan- interest rate based on prime rate adjusted for fixed coverage ratio
(table above), maturity date July 6, 2020
Base Rate Term Loan- interest rate based on prime rate adjusted for fixed coverage ratio
(table above) fixed coverage ratio, maturity date July 6, 2020
Note payable to individual, payable on demand, interest at 10.0% per annum, unsecured
Acquisition note payable, $200,000 due February 28, 2015 and $400,000 due February 28,
2016, non-interest bearing with interest imputed at 2.87% per annum
Credit line due January 1, 2024, with interest rate of 2.75%
Note payable for purchase of noncontrolling interest, interest at 2% per annum; due February
1, 2016. This note was paid on January 20, 2016
Total Debt
Current portion
Long-term portion
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$

$

7,769,494

September 30,
2015
$

7,225,745

7,389,602

7,628,438

93,663

92,441

398,094
665,956

395,251
669,351

500,889
16,817,698
1,947,990
14,869,708

–
16,011,226
1,443,036
14,568,190

$

Note 6: Note Payable, Related Party
In connection with the purchase of Marquis Industries Inc., the Company entered into a mezzanine loan in an amount of up to $7,000,000
provided by Isaac Capital Fund, a private lender whose managing member is Jon Isaac, the chief executive officer of the Company.
The Isaac Capital Fund mezzanine loan bears interest at 12.5% with payment obligations of interest each month and all principal due in
January 2021 (six months after the final payments are due under the Bank of America Term and Revolving Loan). As of December 31,
2015 and September 30, 2015, there was $5,650,259 and $6,495,825, respectively, outstanding on this mezzanine loan.
Note 7: Equity
During the three months ended December 31, 2015, the Company issued:
·

4,775 shares of common stock for services rendered valued at $7,500. The value was based on the market value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of issuance.

During the three months ended December 31, 2014, the Company issued:
·

27,500 shares of common stock for services rendered valued at $82,127. The value was based on the market value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of issuance;

·

801,378 share of common stock for the conversion of convertible notes and accrued interest of $635,756;

·

630,252 shares of common stock as payment for the original issue discount fees associated with the Kingston agreement. The
value of the shares of $2,004,202 was based on the market value of the Company’s common stock at the date of issuance.

2014 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan
On January 7, 2014, our Board of Directors adopted the 2014 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan”), which authorizes the
issuance of distribution equivalent rights, incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options, performance stock, performance units,
restricted ordinary shares, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, tandem stock appreciation rights and unrestricted ordinary shares
to our officers, employees, directors, consultants and advisors. The Company has reserved up to 1,800,000 shares of common stock for
issuance under the 2014 Plan. As required under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(c), the Company included a proposal at its 2014 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which was held on July 11, 2014, to obtain approval of the 2014 Plan. The 2014 Plan was approved.
Series E Convertible Preferred Stock
Pursuant to an existing tender offer, holders of 13,184 shares of the Company’s common stock exchanged said shares for 127,840 shares of
Series E Convertible Preferred Stock, at the then $0.85 market value of the common stock. The shares carry a $0.30 per share liquidation
preference and accrue dividends at the rate of 5% per annum on the liquidation preference per share, payable quarterly from legally
available funds. If such funds are not available, dividends shall continue to accumulate until they can be paid from legally available funds.
Holders of the preferred shares are entitled, after two years from issuance, to convert them into common shares on a hundred-to-one basis
together with payment of $0.45 per converted share.
Dividends
During the three months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company accrued dividends of $480 and $483, respectively, payable to
holders of Series E preferred stock. At December 31, 2015 unpaid dividends were $480.
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Note 8: Warrants
The Company issued several Notes in prior periods and converted them resulting in the issuance of warrants. The following table
summarizes information about the Company’s warrants at December 31, 2015:

Outstanding at September 30, 2015
Granted
Exercised
Outstanding at December 31, 2015
Exercisable at December 31, 2015

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$
0.69

Number of Units
3,540,876
–
–
3,540,876
3,540,876

$
$

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term (in years)
2.73

0.69
0.69

2.48
2.48

Intrinsic Value
$
3,498,531

$
$

2,719,539
2,719,539

Most of the above warrants were issued in connection with conversion of convertible notes (See Note 5). When the debt is converted and
warrants are issued, the Company determines the fair value of the warrants using the Black-Scholes model and takes a charge to interest
expense at the date of issuance.
The exercise price for warrants outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2015 is as follows:
Outstanding
Number of
Exercise
Warrants
Price
1,631,886
$
0.55
535,716
0.56
371,487
0.81
0.95
1,001,787
3,540,876

Exercisable
Number of
Warrants
1,631,886
$
535,716
371,487
1,001,787
3,540,876

Exercise
Price
0.55
0.56
0.81
0.95

Note 9: Stock Options
From time to time, the Company grants stock options and restricted stock awards to officers, directors, employees and consultants. These
awards are valued based on the grant date fair value of the instruments, net of estimated forfeitures. The value of each award is amortized
on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period.
Stock Options
The following table summarizes stock option activity for the three months ended December 31, 2015:

Outstanding at September 30, 2015
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2015
Exercisable at December 31, 2015

Number of
Shares
1,050,000
–
–
–
1,050,000
675,000
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Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$
1.87

$
$

1.87
1.73

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual Life
4.76

4.50
4.01

Intrinsic Value
$
225,750

$
$

149,000
149,000

The Company recognized compensation expense of $91,227 and $29,390 during the three months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, related to stock option awards granted to certain employees and executives based on the grant date fair value of the awards,
net of estimated forfeitures.
At December 31, 2015, the Company had $168,571 of unrecognized compensation expense (net of estimated forfeitures) associated with
stock option awards which the Company expects will be recognized through June 2017.
The exercise price for options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2015 is as follows:
Outstanding
Number of
Exercise
Options
Price
187,500
$
0.83
150,000
1.25
187,500
1.67
37,500
2.08
37,500
2.50
2.53
450,000
1,050,000

Exercisable
Number of
Options
187,500
$
150,000
37,500
–
–
300,000
675,000

Exercise
Price
0.83
1.25
1.67
2.08
2.50
2.53

The following table summarizes information about the Company’s non-vested shares as of December 31, 2015:
Non-vested Shares
Nonvested at September 30, 2015
Granted
Vested
Nonvested at December 31, 2015

Number of Shares
375,000
–
–
375,000

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair Value
$
1.44
$

1.44

Note 10: Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Earnings (loss) per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the applicable
period. Basic weighted average common shares outstanding is computed using the weighted average shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and if dilutive, potential
common shares outstanding during the period. Potential common shares consist of the additional common shares issuable in respect of
stock options, warrants and convertible preferred stock. The potential dilutive effect of stock options and warrants is calculated using the
treasury stock method. Preferred stock dividends are subtracted from net loss to determine the amount available to common stockholders.
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The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Three Months Ended December 31,
2015
2014
Basic
Net income (loss) attributed to Live Ventures Incorporated
Less: preferred stock dividends
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock

$
$

Weighted average common shares outstanding

176,148
(480)
175,668

$
$

16,905,098

Basic earnings (loss) per share

(4,947,434)
(483)
(4,947,917)
15,111,162

$

0.01

$

(0.33)

$

175,668
480
176,148

$

(4,947,917)
483
(4,947,434)

Diluted
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock
Add: preferred stock dividends
Net income (loss) applicable for diluted earnings (loss) per share

$

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Add: Options
Add: Warrants
Add: preferred stock
Assumed weighted average common shares outstanding

$

16,905,098
129,344
2,057,207
127,800
19,219,449

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

$
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0.01

15,111,162
–
–
–
15,111,162
$

(0.33)

The following is a list of potentially dilutive securities outstanding (prior to dilutive effect) at the respective periods:
Three Months Ended December 31,
2015
2014
Options to purchase shares of common stock
Warrants to purchase shares of common stock
Series E convertible preferred stock
Total potentially dilutive shares

1,050,000
3,540,876
127,840
4,718,716

600,000
3,540,876
127,840
4,268,716

Note 11: Income Taxes
At December 31, 2015, the Company maintained a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets. The Company determined that a
100% valuation allowance was necessary at December 31, 2015.
For the period from October 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015, Marquis Industries, Inc. and subsidiaries is required to file a separate income
return, and therefore, the income generated by these subsidiaries cannot be offset against the Company’s net operating losses. Income tax
expense for the three months ended December 31, 2015 for Marquis Industries, Inc. was $413,980.
Note 12: Related Party Transactions
The Company entered into a Note Purchase Agreement with ICG, an entity owned by Jon Isaac, the Company’s President and Chief
Executive Officer and a director of the Company, and subsequently issued a series of Subordinated Convertible Notes thereunder to ICG. In
connection with these transactions, the Company received gross proceeds of $500,000 during the year ended September 30, 2014.
Because the conversion price under ICG’s notes was less than the fair market value of the stock on the date of issuance, the Company
recognized a beneficial conversion feature which was treated as a debt discount and amortized on a straight line basis as interest expense
until the date of conversion, at which time all remaining debt discount was recognized as interest expense. Additionally, the fair value of
the warrants that were contingently issuable to ICG upon conversion were recognized as additional interest expense.
During the three months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company recognized total interest expense of $0 and $2,018,803,
respectively, associated with the ICG notes.
The Company leases a building from a related party under long-term operating lease. The building lease from a related party is $18,562 per
month and expires in July 2020.
In connection with the purchase of the noncontrolling interest the Company issued a note payable of $500,000 due on February 1, 2016
with interest at 2% per annum. The $500,000 note payable was paid on January 20, 2016.
Also see Note 6 and 7.
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Note 13: Commitments and Contingencies
Purchase price contingency
In connection with acquisition of Modern Everyday, Inc., the Company issued 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock as part of
the consideration for the acquisition. The Company has guaranteed the holder of the 50,000 shares that the value of those shares will be at
least $8.00 per shares 30 months after the acquisition date. The Company has agreed to compensate the holder, if the share price is less
than $8.00 at the 30 months anniversary of the acquisition, the difference between $8.00 and the share price at the 30 month anniversary
times the number of shares still owned by the holder. As of December 31, 2015, the Company as recorded a liability of $327,000 related to
this guarantee. The value of these shares was included as part of the purchase price consideration. The Company will adjust this guarantee
at the end of each balance sheet date based on the current price of the Company’s common stock.
Litigation
The Company is party to certain legal proceedings from time to time incidental to the conduct of its business. These proceedings could
result in fines, penalties, compensatory or treble damages or non-monetary relief. The nature of legal proceedings is such that the Company
cannot assure the outcome of any particular matter, and an unfavorable ruling or development could have a materially adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows in the period in which a ruling or settlement occurs. However, based on
information available to the Company’s management to date, the Company’s management does not expect that the outcome of any matter
pending against us is likely to have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position as of December 31, 2015,
results of operations, cash flows or liquidity of the Company.
Note 14: Concentration of Credit Risk
The Company maintains cash balances at banks in California, Nevada and Georgia. Accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000 per institution as of December 31, 2015. At times, balances may exceed federally insured limits.
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Note 15: Segment Reporting
The Company operates in three segments which are characterized as: (1) legacy merchant’s services, (2) online marketplace platform and
(3) manufacturing. The legacy merchants’ services consists of directory services, the online marketplace platform consists of livedeal.com
and the fiscal 2014 acquisitions of consumer products entities and the manufacturing segment consists of the 2015 acquisition of Marquis
Industries.
The following tables summarize segment information for the three months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:
Three Months Ended December 31,
2015
2014
Revenues
Marketplace platform
Manufacturing
Services

$

$
Gross profit
Marketplace platform
Manufacturing
Services

$

$
Operating income (loss)
Marketplace platform
Manufacturing
Services

$

$
Depreciation and amortization
Marketplace platform
Manufacturing
Services

$

$
Interest Expenses
Marketplace platform
Manufacturing
Services

$

$
Provision for income taxes
Marketplace platform
Manufacturing
Services

$

$
Net income (loss)
Marketplace platform
Manufacturing
Services

$

$
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3,641,642
16,190,030
272,762
20,104,434

$

1,595,255
4,553,674
260,946
6,409,875

$

(903,745)
1,691,630
259,367
1,047,252

$

68,276
477,556
–
545,832

$

66,907
278,576
–
345,483

$

–
413,980
–
413,980

$

(809,468)
860,783
249,027
300,342

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

7,597,068
–
409,984
8,007,052

2,879,923
–
357,033
3,236,956

(1,158,430)
–
290,541
(867,889)

164,522
–
–
164,522

4,191,630
–
–
4,191,630

–
–
–
–

(5,237,975)
–
290,541
(4,947,434)

As of
December 31,
2015
Total Assets
Marketplace platform
Manufacturing
Services

$

$
Intangible assets
Marketplace platform
Manufacturing
Services

$

$

As of
September 30,
2015

5,631,579
32,962,806
313,045
38,907,430

$

1,458,999
800,000
–
2,258,999

$

$

$

6,811,977
33,714,344
138,035
40,664,356

1,516,930
800,000
–
2,316,930

Note 16: Business Combination
On July 6 and July 7, 2015, the Company entered into a series of agreements in connection with its indirect purchase of Marquis Industries,
Inc., a Georgia corporation, and its subsidiaries. The purchase price allocation made by the Company as disclosed in the footnotes to its
audited financial statements included in Form 10K is preliminary and subject to change. The Company has not yet completed its analysis to
determine the fair value of inventory, property and equipment and a mezzanine loan on the acquisition date. Once this analysis is complete,
the Company will adjust, if necessary, the provisional amounts assigned to inventory, property and equipment and a mezzanine loan in the
accounting period in which the analysis is completed.
The unaudited pro forma information below present statement of operations data for the three months ended December 31, 2014 as if the
acquisition of Marquis Industries took place on October 1, 2014.

Net revenue
Gross profit
Operating income
Net loss
Loss per share

Three Months Ended
December 31,
2014
(unaudited)
$
23,059,337
6,877,799
754,105
(4,351,474)
(0.29)

Note 17: Subsequent Event
On January 20, 2016, the $500,000 note payable issued during the three months ended December 31, 2015 for the purchase of the
noncontrolling interest was paid.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
For a description of our significant accounting policies and an understanding of the significant factors that influenced our performance
during the three months ended December 31, 2015, this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” (hereafter referred to as “MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with the condensed consolidated financial statements,
including the related notes, appearing in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as well as our Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015.
Note About Forward-Looking Statements
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes statements that constitute “forward-looking statements.” These forward-looking statements
are often characterized by the terms “may,” “believes,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “expects,” or “anticipates,” and do not reflect
historical facts. Specific forward-looking statements contained in this portion of the Quarterly Report include, but are not limited to our (i)
belief in the continued growth of internet usage, particularly via mobile devices, and demand for web-based marketing; (ii) belief in the
continued growth in the demand for local search and information, (iii) belief that small and medium businesses will continue to outsource
their online marketing efforts to third parties; (iv) belief that we can cost-effectively expand into other cities due to the scalability of the
LiveDeal.com platform; (v) belief that the cash on hand and additional cash generated from operations together with potential sources of
cash through issuance of debt or equity will provide the company with sufficient liquidity for the next 12 months; and (vi) belief that the
outcome of pending legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on business, financial position and results of operations, cash
flow or liquidity.
Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause our actual results, performance or
achievements to be materially different from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors and risks that could
affect our results and achievements and cause them to materially differ from those contained in the forward-looking statements include
those identified in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 under Item 1A “Risk Factors”, as well as
other factors that we are currently unable to identify or quantify, but that may exist in the future.
In addition, the foregoing factors may generally affect our business, results of operations and financial position. Forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date the statements were made. We do not undertake and specifically decline any obligation to update any
forward-looking statements. Any information contained on our website www.livedeal.com or any other websites referenced in this
Quarterly Report are not part of this Quarterly Report.
Our Company
Live Ventures Incorporated is a holding company for diversified businesses, which, together with our subsidiaries, we refer to as the
“Company”, “Live Ventures”, “we”, “us” or “our.” Live Ventures first started in the online marketing industry as YP.com. At the time, we
were the first company to bring the print yellow pages to the Internet in 1994. From there we moved into the online classifieds business.
We primarily promoted online marketing solutions to small and medium businesses to help them boost customer awareness, gain visibility
and manage their online presence under our Velocity Local™ brand. We also offered affordable acquisition services to the small business
segment though the Instant Agency suite of products and services. Those products, included InstantProfile, which distributes a small
business’ key contact and service information to the top Internet destinations, include search engines, internet directories and social media
networks. Although we continue to generate revenue from servicing our existing customers under InstantProfile, which we refer to as our
legacy product offerings, because of the change in our business strategy in 2013, we no longer accept new customers under our legacy
product offerings.
In 2013 we launched LiveDeal.com, real-time “deal engine” that connects restaurants across the United States and consumers via an
platform. The LiveDeal.com platform targets restaurants in cities across the United States to help them use the platform to attract new
customers. In addition, through our subsidiary, Modern Everyday, we maintain an online consumer products retailer.
Commencing in fiscal year 2015, we began to expand our business outside of solely providing an online marketplace. Although we
continue to a provide online marketing solutions for small and medium business, we began to focus on acquiring profitable companies in
various industries that have demonstrated a strong history of earnings power. We continue to actively develop, revise and evaluate our
products, services and our marketing strategies in all of our business lines. However, due to the diversification of our as a result of the
acquisition of businesses in several industries, we expect that revenues from our online marketplace business segment and our legacy
products will be diluted in the coming months and years. As of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, Live Goods and DealTicker
ceased operations, and we discontinued our suite of online presence marketing products and solutions under the Velocity Local™ brand.
Under the Live Ventures brand we seek opportunities to acquire profitable and well-managed companies. We will work closely with
consultants who will help us identify target companies that fit within the criteria we have established for opportunities that will provide
synergies with our businesses.
Our principal offices are located at 325 E. Warm Springs Road, Suite 102, Las Vegas, Nevada 89119, our telephone number is (702) 9390231, and our corporate website (which does not form part of this report) is located at www.live-ventures.com. Our common stock trades
on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “LIVE”.
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Manufacturing Segment
In July 2015, we acquired a majority interest in Marquis Industries, Inc., a Georgia corporation, through our partially-owned subsidiary,
Marquis Affiliated Holdings LLC, Marquis Industries is a leading carpet manufacturer and a manufacturer of innovative yarn products, as
well as a reseller of hard surface flooring products. Over the last decade, Marquis has been an innovator and leader in the value-oriented
polyester carpet sector, which is currently the market’s fastest-growing fiber category. We focus on the residential, niche commercial, and
hospitality end-markets and serve over 2,000 customers.
Since its founding in 1990, Marquis has built a strong reputation for outstanding value, styling, and customer service. Its innovation has
yielded products and technologies that differentiate its brands in the flooring marketplace. Marquis’s state-of-the-art operations enable high
quality products, unique customization, and exceptionally short lead-times. Furthermore, the Company has recently invested in additional
capacity to grow several attractive lines of business, including printed carpet and yarn extrusion. Through its A-O Division, utilizes its
state-of-the-art yarn extrusion capacity to market monofilament textured yarn products to the artificial turf industry.
Online Marketplace Platform Segment
In September 2013, we launched LiveDeal.com. LiveDeal.com is a unique, real-time “deal engine” connecting merchants with consumers.
Currently, we provide marketing solutions to a growing base of restaurants to boost customer awareness and merchant visibility on the
Internet. We believe that we have developed the first-of-its-kind web/mobile platform providing restaurants with full control and flexibility
to instantly publish customized offers whenever they wish to attract customers. Restaurants can sign up to use the LiveDeal platform at our
website.
Highlights of LiveDeal.com include:
—
—
—
—
—
—

an intuitive interface enabling restaurants to create limited-time offers and publish them immediately, or on a
preset schedule that is fully customizable;
state-of-the-art scheduling technology giving restaurants the freedom to choose the days, times and duration
of the offers, enabling them to create offers that entice consumers to visit their establishment during their
slower periods;
advanced publishing options allowing restaurants to manage traffic by limiting the number of available
vouchers to consumers;
superior geo-location technology allowing multi-location restaurants to segment offers by location,
attracting customers to slower locations while eliminating potential over-crowding at busier sites;
innovating proprietary restaurant indexing methodology; and
a user-friendly mobile and desktop web interface allowing consumers to easily browse, download, and
instantly redeem “live” offers found on LiveDeal.com based on their location.

In 2014, the Livedeal.com iOS mobile App was approved by Apple for inclusion in Apple’s App Store, and the Android App became
available to the public in the Google Play Store.
We believe one of the primary challenges facing the dining industry is the inefficient and limited number of ways restaurants are able to
market offers and promotions to their potential customers. Daily deal companies typically dictate offer terms, such as the discount amount
and redemption details. This not only erodes potential profits for restaurant owners but could also drive traffic during already-busy periods
for the restaurants. LiveDeal’s model benefits both the restaurant and the consumer because it provides the restaurant the opportunity to
create any offer they choose, limit the number of potential claimants of their promotion, publish the offer on days and at times of their
choosing, and provides customers with relevant offers they can easily and quickly redeem while creating a cost-effective model for
LiveDeal to grow and easily scale its operations. We expect to initially derive revenues through premium placement on the site, and we are
also exploring various options for monetizing the website.
The Company, best known for migrating print yellow pages to the Internet in 1994, began to develop the model for LiveDeal.com after
having worked closely with well-known publishers in the daily deal market. In mid-2013, we tested the beta platform in a number of cities,
and the model has been well received by restaurants, consumers, and various restaurant associations. We launched LiveDeal.com in the San
Diego and Los Angeles, California markets in September 2013 and December 2013, respectively. In 2015 we launched a massive
advertising campaign directed at over 35 cities to support the restaurant owners who have created more than 10,000 deals in over 8,000
restaurants in those cities. The Company believes it can cost-effectively expand into other cities due to the scalability of the LiveDeal.com
platform, as restaurants can curate deals through our account managers or create specials on their own. In addition, individual customers
transact directly with the restaurant, eliminating the need for the Company to act as an intermediary in the sale.
In order to leverage our consumer base, during fiscal 2014 we acquired three business that offer consumer products. We plan to incorporate
the sale of consumer products into our livedeal.com website to make it a vertically integrated one-stop shop for all the needs of the
everyday consumer. Below is a brief description of the business purchased in fiscal 2014.
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Modern Everyday, Inc.,
Modern Everyday, Inc. (“MEI”), acquired in August 2014, has a web presence providing consumers with products that range from kitchen
and dining products, apparel and sporting goods to children's toys and beauty products. Modern Everyday also has proprietary software that
will give us the capability to track products and predict consumer behavior and spending habits.
Legacy and Merchants’ Services Segment
We developed and market a suite of products and services designed to meet the online marketing needs of SMBs at affordable prices. In
August 2012, we commenced sourcing local deal and activities to strategic publishing partners under our LiveDeal ® brand, which we refer
to as promotional marketing. In November 2012, we commenced the sale of marketing tools that help local businesses manage their online
presence under our Velocity Local ™ brand, which we refer to as online presence marketing. Our target customers for our our LiveDeal ®
brand is SMB owners who work long hours to deliver real value to their customers in their own communities that do not have the time or
expertise to develop the powerful, multi-faceted, online marketing and advertising programs necessary for successful online marketing. Our
offerings draw on a decade of experience servicing SMBs in the internet technology environment.
We continue to generate revenue from servicing our existing customers under our legacy product offerings, primarily our InstantProfile ®
line of products and services. Because of the change in our business strategy and product lines, we no longer accept new customers under
our legacy product offerings.
Business Acquisition
On July 6 and July 7, 2015, we entered into a series of agreements in connection with our indirect purchase of Marquis Industries, Inc., a
Georgia corporation (“Marquis Industries”), and its subsidiaries. Marquis Industries is a specialty, high-performance carpet yarn
manufacturer, hard-surfaces re-seller, and top 10 high-end residential carpet manufacturer in the United States. The purchase and financing
transactions were, in the aggregate, valued at approximately $30 million. The purchase was effectuated between Marquis Affiliated
Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Marquis Holdings”) that is 80% owned by Live Ventures. The remaining 20% of
Marquis Holdings is owned by the former owners of Marquis Industries. In connection with the purchase and finance transaction, various
persons and entities entered into a series of agreements (each of which is dated on or about July 6, 2015, with funding occurring on July 6
and July 7, 2015).
Effective November 30, 2015, we purchased the remaining 20% interest in Marquis for $2,000,000 of which $1,500,000 was paid in cash
and a note payable of $500,000 due on February 1, 2016. The excess of the noncontrolling interest at November 30, 2015 over the
$2,000,000 purchase price of $78,038 has been record directly to additional paid in capital.
Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires our management to make many estimates and assumptions that may materially affect both our consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures, such as reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, and the comparability of the information presented over
different reporting periods. Estimates and assumptions are based on management's experience and other information available prior to the
issuance of our financial statements. Our actual realized results may differ materially from management’s initial estimates as reported.
Summaries of our significant accounting policies are detailed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which are an integral
component of this filing.
The discussion in this section of "critical" accounting estimates and assumptions is according to the disclosure guidelines of the SEC,
wherein:
·

the nature of the estimates or assumptions is material due to the levels of subjectivity and judgment necessary to
account for highly uncertain matters or the susceptibility of such matters to change; and

·

the impact of the estimates and assumptions on our financial condition or operating performance is material.

Besides those meeting these "critical" criteria, we make many other accounting estimates and assumptions in preparing our financial
statements and related disclosures. Although not associated with “highly uncertain matters,” these estimates and assumptions are also
subject to revision as circumstances warrant, and materially different results may sometimes occur.
The following summarizes “critical” estimates and assumptions made by management in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.
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Revenue Recognition
Directory Services
Revenue is billed and recognized monthly for services subscribed in that specific month. We have historically utilized outside billing
companies to perform billing services through direct ACH withdrawals.
For billings via ACH withdrawals, revenue is recognized when such billings are accepted. For billings via LECs, we recognize revenue
based on net billings accepted by the LECs. Due to the periods of time for which adjustments may be reported by the LECs and the billing
companies, we estimate and accrue for dilution and fees reported subsequent to year-end for initial billings related to services provided for
periods within the fiscal year. Such dilution and fees are reported in cost of services in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. Customer refunds are recorded as an offset to gross revenue.
Revenue for billings to certain customers that are billed directly by us and not through the outside billing companies is recognized based on
estimated future collections. We continuously reviews this estimate for reasonableness based on its collection experience.
Deals Revenue
We recognize revenue from sales through our strategic publishing partners of discounted goods and services offered by our merchant
clients (“Deals”) when the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery has occurred; the selling price
is fixed or determinable; and collectability is reasonably assured. These criteria are met when the number of customers who purchase the
daily deal exceeds the predetermined threshold, where, if applicable, the Deal has been electronically delivered to the purchaser and a
listing of Deals sold has been made available to the merchant. At that time, our obligations to the merchant, for which we are serving as an
agent, are substantially complete. Our remaining obligations, which are limited to remitting payment to the merchant, are inconsequential
or perfunctory. We record as revenue an amount equal to the net amount it retains from the sale of Deals after paying an agreed upon
percentage of the purchase price to the featured merchant excluding any applicable taxes. Revenue is recorded on a net basis because we
are acting as an agent of the merchant in the transaction.
Product Revenue
We derive product revenue primarily from direct revenue and fulfillment partner revenue from product sales. Product revenue is recognized
when the following revenue recognition criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occurred or the
service has been provided; (3) the selling price or fee revenue earned is fixed or determinable; and (4) collection of the resulting receivable
is reasonably assured. Revenue related to product sales is recognized when the above four criteria are met.
We evaluate the criteria outlined in ASC Topic 605-45, Principal Agent Considerations, in determining whether it is appropriate to record
the gross amount of product sales and related costs or the net amount earned as commissions. When we are the primary obligor in a
transaction, are subject to inventory risk, have latitude in establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or have several but not all of these
indicators, revenue is recorded gross. If we are not the primary obligor in the transaction and amounts earned are determined using a fixed
percentage, revenue is recorded on a net basis. Currently, all direct revenue and fulfillment partner revenue is recorded on a gross basis, as
we are the primary obligor. We present revenue net of sales taxes.
Manufacturing Revenue
Revenues, including shipping and handling amounts, are recognized when the following criteria are met: there is persuasive evidence that a
sales agreement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable, and
collectability is reasonably assured. Delivery is not considered to have occurred until the customer takes title to the goods and assumes the
risks and rewards of ownership, which is generally on the date of shipment. At the time revenue is recognized, the Company records a
provision for the estimated amount of future returns based primarily on historical experience and any known trends or conditions that exist
at the time revenue is recognized. Revenues are recorded net of taxes collected from customers.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts, which includes allowances for customer refunds, dilution and fees from LEC billing
aggregators and other uncollectible accounts. The determination of the allowance for doubtful accounts is dependent on many factors,
including regulatory activity, changes in fee schedules by LEC service providers and recent historical trends.
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Carrying Value of Intangible Assets
Our intangible assets consist of licenses for the use of internet domain names or universal resource locators, or URLs, capitalized website
development costs and software, other information technology licenses, customer lists, non-compete agreements and marketing and
technology-related intangibles acquired through acquisitions. All these assets are capitalized at their original cost (or at fair value for assets
acquired through business combinations) and amortized over their estimated useful lives. We capitalize internally generated software and
website development costs in accordance with the provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) ASC 350,
“Intangibles – Goodwill and Other”.
We evaluate the recoverability of the carrying amount of intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of these assets may not be fully recoverable. In the event of such changes, impairment would be assessed if the expected
undiscounted net cash flows derived for the asset are less than its carrying amount.
Stock-Based Compensation
From time to time we grant restricted stock awards and options to employees, non-employees and our executives and directors. Such awards
are valued based on the grant date fair-value of the instruments, net of estimated forfeitures. The value of each award is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period.
Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method as prescribed by ASC 740 “Income Taxes”. Under this method,
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which these temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance would be provided for those deferred tax assets for which if it is more likely
than not that the related benefit will not be realized.
We have estimated net deferred income tax assets (net of valuation allowances) of $0 at December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2015. A
full valuation allowance has been established against all net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2015 based on
estimates of recoverability. While we have optimistic plans for our new business strategy, we determined that such a valuation allowance
was necessary given the current and expected near term losses and the uncertainty with respect to our ability to generate sufficient profits
from our new business lines. Therefore, we established a valuation allowance for all deferred tax assets in excess of those expected to be
realizable through the application of operating loss carrybacks.
For the period from October 1, 2015 to November 30, 2015, Marquis Industries, Inc. and subsidiaries is required to file a separate income
return, and therefore, the income generated by these subsidiaries cannot be offset against the Company’s net operating losses.
Results of Operations
The following sets forth a discussion of our financial results for the three months ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the three
months ended December 31, 2014. In evaluating our business, management reviews several key performance indicators including new
customers, total customers in each line of business, revenues per customer, and customer retention rates. However, given the changing
nature of our business strategy, we do not believe that presentation of these metrics would reveal any meaningful trends in our operations
that are not otherwise apparent from the discussion of our financial results below. Generally, the significant changes in the results of
operations when compared to the prior periods as noted below is a result of the acquisition of Marquis Industries we made in July 2015.
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Revenues
Revenues
2015
Three Months Ended December 31

$

20,104,434

2014
$

Change

8,007,052

$

12,097,382

Percent
151%

Revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2015 increased by $12,097,382, as compared to the three months ended December 31,
2014, primarily due to the acquisition of Marquis Industries in July 2015. Revenue from our manufacturing segment increased from $0 for
the three months ended December 31, 2014 to $16,190,030 for the three months ended December 31, 2015. Revenue from our online
marketplace platform segment decreased by $3,955,426 or 52% from $7,597,068 for the three months ended December 31, 2014 to
$3,641,642 for the three months ended December 31, 2015. The decrease is due to a change in our overall strategy which resulted in fewer
resources being focused on our marketplace platform segment. Revenue from our legacy and merchants’ services segment decreased by
$137,222 or 33% from $409,984 for the three months ended December 31, 2014 to $272,762 for the three months ended December 31,
2015. We expect revenue from this segment to continue to decrease in the future.
Cost of Revenues
Cost of Revenues
2014
Change

2015
Three Months Ended December 31

$

13,694,559

$

4,770,096

$

8,924,463

Percent
187%

Cost of revenues, which consists of principally of the cost of products we sale, increased for the three months ended December 31, 2015 as
compared to the three months ended December 31, 2014, by $8,924,463. The increase in cost of revenue for the three months ended
December 31, 2015 is primarily due to increase in revenue as a result of our acquisition of Marquis Industries in July 2015. Cost of revenue
were 68.1% and 59.6% of net revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, an increase of 8.5%. The
increase is due to the increase in revenue from our manufacturing segment that have a higher cost of revenue that our marketplace platform
segment..
Gross Profit
Gross Profit
2015
Three Months Ended December 31

$

6,409,875

2014
$

3,236,956

Change
$

3,172,919

Percent
98%

Gross profit increased for the three months ended December 31, 2015 by $3,172,919, as compared to the three months ended December 31,
2014, primarily due to the increase in revenues from our acquisition of Marquis Industries in July 2015. The gross profit percentage for
three months ended December 31, 2015 was 31.9% compared to 40.4% for the three months ended December 31, 2014. Our gross profit
percentage from our legacy and merchants’ services segment was 95.7% and 87.1% for the three months ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively, and our gross profit percentage for our online marketplace platform segment was 43.8% and 37.9% for the three months
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Our gross profit percentage from our newly acquired manufacturing segment was 28.1%.
We were able to significantly improve our gross margin for our online marketplace platform segment by reducing our product costs and
focusing on selling higher margin products.
General and Administrative Expenses

Three Months Ended December 31

$

2015

General and Administrative Expenses
2014
Change

2,365,873

$

1,917,368

$

448,505

Percent
23%

General and administrative expenses increased for the three months ended December 31, 2015 as compared to three months ended
December 31, 2014 by $448,505. The increase for the three months ended December 31, 2015 compared to the same period in 2014 is
principally a result of the acquisition of Marquis Industries in July 2015 that incurred $1,147,287 in general and administrative expenses
offset by reduction of general and administrative expenses in our marketplace platform segment as we shifted our resources as a result of
our change in strategy. We expect our general and administrative expenses to remain at the current level for the near future.
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Sales and Marketing Expenses
Sales and Marketing Expenses
2014
Change

2015
Three Months Ended December 31

$

2,996,750

$

2,187,477

$

Percent

809,273

37%

Sales and marketing expense increased for the three months ended December 31, 2015 as compared to three months ended December 31,
2014 primarily due to expenses associated with marketing activities for Marquis Industries.
Operating Income (Loss)
Operating Income (Loss)
2014
Change

2015
Three Months Ended December 31

$

1,047,252

$

(867,889)

$

Percent

1,915,141

37%

The increase in operating income for the three months ended December 31, 2015 as compared to three months ended December 31, 2014
resulted from a variety of factors, including the acquisition of Marquis Industries in July 2015.
Total Other Income (Expense)
Total Other Income (Expense)
2014
Change

2015
Three Months Ended December 31

$

(332,930)

$

(4,079,545)

$

Percent

3,746,615

(92)%

The large decrease in other expense in the three months ended December 31, 2015 as compared to three months ended December 31, 2014
was primarily due to interest expense relating to the amortization of debt discounts, the issuance of warrants upon the conversion of debt
and the issuance of common stock for the original issue discount on a $10 million credit facility during the three months ended December
31, 2014, offset by an increase in interest paid on our outstanding loan balances that resulted from the acquisition of Marquis Industries in
July 2015.
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Live Ventures Incorporated
Net Income (Loss)
2014
Change

2015
Three Months Ended December 31

$

176,148

$

(4,947,434)

$

5,123,582

Percent
(104)%

The increase in the net income for the three months ended December 31, 2015, as compared to the net loss for the three months ended
December 31, 2014 was primarily attributable to the acquisition of Marquis Industries in July 2015 and the large interest expense charge
taken during the three months ended December 31, 2014, as described above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2015 was $3,324,019 compared to $2,727,818 at September 30, 2015, an
increase of $596,201. The principal reason for this increase was the cash generated from our Marquis Industries subsidiary.
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities was $2,734,688 for the three months ended December 31, 2015 as compared to cash used in
operating activities of $1,302,777 for the same period in 2014. This change was due to an increase of $5,247,776 in our net income,
partially offset by a decrease of non-cash expenses of $3,784,541 which during the three months ended December 31, 2014 included
$2,187,563 of interest expense associated with convertible debt and warrants, and $2,004,202 of interest expense associated with loan fees.
Cash flows from operations were also impacted by an increase of $2,542,670 in changes in working capital and other assets in the three
months ended December 31, 2015 as compared to the same period in 2014. This working capital variance resulted primarily from the
changes in accounts receivable and accounts payable.
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Our cash flows used in investing activities during the three months ended December 31, 2015 consisted of $94,439 of purchases of
equipment. Our cash flows used in investing activities during the three months ended December 31, 2014 consisted of $20,714 of
expenditures for intangible assets and $28,798 of purchases of equipment.
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Our cash flows used in financing activities during the three months ended December 31, 2015 consisted of $540,354 from net borrowings
under our revolver loan; the repayment of $238,536 and $845,566 of notes payable and related party notes payable, respectively, and
$1,500,000 paid to purchase the noncontrolling interest. Our cash flows used in financing activities during the three months ended
December 31, 2014 consisted of $100,000 from the issuance of a convertible note payable and $346,182 for the repayment of notes
payable.
Working Capital
We had working capital of $13,129,643 as of December 31, 2015 compared to working capital of $14,812,654 as of September 30, 2015
with current assets decreasing by $1,305,478 and current liabilities increasing by $377,533 from September 30, 2015 to December 31, 2015.
Revolver Loan and Term Loan
In connection with the purchase of Marquis Industries Inc., we entered into an agreement with Bank of America for a Term and Revolving
Loan for approximately $7.8 million for the term component and approximately $15 million for the revolving component. As part of the
Bank of America Revolving Loan, Marquis Industries may borrow up to $15 million (based on eligibility). At September 30, 2015 we had
$7,769,494 and $7,389,602 outstanding on the Revolver Loan and Term Loan, respectively.
Future Sources of Cash; New Products and Services
We will require additional capital to finance our planned business operations as we continue to build and market our LiveDeal.com, fund
our growing operations including the recent acquisition of Marquis Industries, and develop other new products. In addition, we may require
additional capital to finance acquisitions or other strategic investments in our business. Other sources of financing may include stock
issuances; additional loans (for example, through our sale and issuance of convertible notes pursuant to the $10 million line of credit that
we entered into in January 2014, as amended); or other forms of financing. Any financing obtained may further dilute or otherwise impair
the ownership interest of our existing stockholders. If we are unable to generate positive cash flows or raise additional capital in a timely
manner or on acceptable terms, we may (i) not be able to make acquisitions or other strategic investments in our business, (ii) modify,
delay or abandon some or all of our business plans, and/or (iii) be forced to cease operations.
We believe that our existing cash on hand is sufficient to finance our operations for the next twelve months. To the extent that we do not
achieve profitability or positive operating cash flows, our business will be materially and adversely affected. Further, our business is likely
to experience significant volatility in our revenues, operating losses, personnel involved, products or services for sale, and other business
parameters, as management implements our new strategies and responds to operating results.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
At December 31, 2015, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements, commitments or guarantees that require additional disclosure or
measurement.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Not applicable.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer (our principal executive officer and principal financial officer) of the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d15(e)). Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered in this report, our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the required time periods and is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. We concluded
they were not effective because of certain deficiencies in our internal controls over financial reporting as disclosed below.
Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting. There have been no changes to our internal controls over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2015 which have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015. In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO") in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment using those criteria, our management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2015 due to our analysis of the valuation of certain inventory and the
purchase price allocation in connection with the acquisition of Marquis.
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PART II – OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company is party to certain legal proceedings from time to time incidental to the conduct of its business. These proceedings could
result in fines, penalties, compensatory or treble damages or non-monetary relief. The nature of legal proceedings is such that we cannot
assure the outcome of any particular matter, and an unfavorable ruling or development could have a materially adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows in the period in which a ruling or settlement occurs. However, based on
information available to the Company’s management to date and other than as noted below, the Company’s management does not expect
that the outcome of any matter pending against us is likely to have a materially adverse effect on our consolidated financial position as of
December 31, 2015, our annual results of operations or cash flows, or our liquidity.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
None
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
The following exhibits are being filed herewith:
Exhibit Number
10.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Description
Agreement, effective as of November 30, 2015, by and among Live Ventures Incorporated, Isaac Capital
Group, Marquis Affiliated Holdings LLC, Marquis Industries, Inc., and the Company's former
stockholders.
Certification of Jon Isaac pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Jon Isaac pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Section 1350 Certification of Jon Isaac
XBRL Instance Document
XBRL Schema Document
XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Definition Linkbase Document
XBRL Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Live Ventures Incorporated
Dated: February 16, 2016

/s/ Jon Isaac
Jon Isaac
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 10.1
Agreement
This Agreement, this "Agreement", is entered into effective as of November 30, 2015, the "Effective Date", by and among Live
Ventures Incorporated, a Nevada corporation, "Live", Isaac Capital Group, "ICG", Marquis Affiliated Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, "Purchaser", Marquis Industries, Inc., a Georgia corporation, the "Company", all of the Company's former stockholders,
Timothy A. Bailey, a Georgia resident, "Bailey", Larry Heckman, a Georgia resident, "Heckman", David Stokes, a Georgia resident,
"Stokes", and Mark Rowland, a Georgia resident, "Rowland", with Bailey, Heckman, Stokes, and Rowland, individually and
interchangeably, a "Former Stockholder", and, in the aggregate, the "Former Stockholders", and their respective heirs, successors, and
permitted assigns.
Witnesseth:
Whereas, Live, Purchaser, the Company and the Former Stockholders entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 6, 2015,
the "SPA", pursuant to which Purchaser purchased from the Former Stockholders all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of
the Company on the terms set forth in the SPA;
Whereas, Purchaser and the Former Stockholders desire to agree upon a binding and conclusive determination of (i) the postClosing purchase price adjustment payable under the SPA and (ii) any Cash distributable pursuant to the SPA;
Whereas, ICG and the Former Stockholders entered into an Operating Agreement for Isaac Capital Fund I, LLC, a Georgia limited
liability company, "ICF", dated July 6, 2015, the "ICF Operating Agreement";
Whereas, ICG and the Former Stockholders desire to set forth their agreements regarding certain additional Capital Contributions
to be made to ICF by the Former Stockholders and certain amendments to ICE Operating Agreement;
Whereas, the Former Stockholders and Live are parties to that certain Operating Agreement of Purchaser, dated effective as of July
6, 2015, the "Purchaser Operating Agreement";
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Whereas, the Former Stockholders collectively own a 20% Percentage Interest in Purchaser, with the respective individual
Percentage Interests of the Former Stockholders shown on Schedule A hereto, and Live owns an 80% Percentage Interest in Purchaser
(as the term "Percentage Interest" is defined in the Purchaser Operating Agreement); and
Whereas, on the terms set forth in this Agreement, the Former Stockholders desire to sell, assign, transfer, and deliver to Live,
and Live desires to purchase from the Former Stockholders, all of the Member Interests (as defined in the Purchaser Operating
Agreement) of the Former Stockholders.
Now, therefore, in consideration of the aforementioned premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties have agreed and by the presents do agree as follows:
1. Capitalized Terms under the SPA.
Live, Purchaser, the Company and the Former Stockholders hereby agree that all capitalized terms used but not defined in this
Agreement shall have the respective meanings ascribed to those capitalized terms in the SPA unless those terms refer to
capitalized terms in the Purchaser Operating Agreement or the ICF Operating Agreement.
2. Post-Closing Purchase Price Adjustment under the SPA.
Live, Purchaser, the Company and the Former Stockholders hereby agree that the amount of the post-Closing purchase price
adjustment owed by Purchaser to the Former Stockholders, in full and final satisfaction of all purchase price adjustments
contemplated by Section 2.05 of the SPA, is $310,661, which shall be paid by Purchaser to the Former Stockholders by an increase
of $310,661 in the principal indebtedness due under the Note (as defined in the ICF Operating Agreement), the "ICF Note". ICG
and the Former Stockholders hereby agree that each of the Former Stockholders shall be deemed to have made an additional Capital
Contribution (as defined in the ICF Operating Agreement) to ICF on the Effective Date in an amount equal to such Former
Stockholder's proportionate share, based upon each such Former Stockholder's Member Interest (as defined in the ICF Operating
Agreement), of $310,661 and the respective Capital Accounts (as defined in the ICF Operating Agreement) of the Former
Stockholders will be increased in corresponding amounts.
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3. Waiver.
The Former Stockholders hereby waive any and all claims that such party had, has or may ever have pursuant to Section 2.05 or
Section 3.01 of the SPA, excluding any claim arising under this Agreement.
4. Payment of Cash, Prepayment of the ICF Note.
Subject to obtaining the consent of Bank of America, the Company shall pay Cash in the amount of $846,247 to ICE as a
prepayment of the ICF Note on or around the Effective Date.
5. Distribution to the Former Stockholders.
Subject to obtaining the consent of Bank of America, ICE shall distribute $846,247 to the Former Stockholders, proportionately
based upon their respective Member Interests (as defined in the ICF Operating Agreement), by wire transfer on or around the
Effective Date pursuant to wire transfer instructions as set forth in Exhibit A.
6. Purchase of the Former Stockholders' Equity Interests in Purchaser.
For the Purchase Price specified below in this Section 6, effective as of the Effective Date, each of the Former Stockholders hereby
sells, assigns, transfers, and delivers to Live all of such Former Stockholder's right, title and interest in and to his entire Member
Interest, in the Percentage Interest set forth opposite such Former Stockholder's name on Schedule A attached hereto, free and clear
of all Encumbrances (as defined below), and Live hereby accepts such sale, assignment and transfer of such Member Interests (the
"Purchase Transaction"). The terms "Member Interest" and "Percentage Interest" as used in this Section 6 shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in the Purchaser Operating Agreement.
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In consideration for the sale of all of the Member Interests of the Former Stockholders (collectively, the "Purchased Interests"),
Live shall pay to the Former Stockholders, proportionately in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests shown on
Schedule A attached hereto, an aggregate purchase price equal to $2,000,000 (the "Purchase Price"), payable as follows: (i)
$1,500,000 shall be paid on or around the Effective Date by wire transfer of immediately available funds pursuant to the wire
transfer instructions set forth in Exhibit B and (ii) $500,000 shall be paid pursuant to a promissory note by Live in favor of the
Former Stockholders, in the form attached as Exhibit C, the "Live Note", the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged.
To secure the Live Note, Live has executed and delivered to the Former Stockholders an Equity Interests Pledge Agreement , in the
form attached as Exhibit D, with the endorsed in blank equity certificate representing all of the Purchased Interests, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged.
Each Former Stockholder hereby represents and warrants to Live that: (i) such Former Stockholder is the owner of record and sole
beneficial owner of his entire Member Interest in the Percentage Interest shown on Schedule A attached hereto; (ii) such Former
Stockholder owns such Member Interest free and clear of all liens, security interests, encumbrances, pledges, charges, claims, and
restrictions on transfer (except restrictions on transfer as set forth in the Operating Agreement) of any nature whatsoever
("Encumbrances"); (iii) such Member Interest represents 100% of the Member Interest in the Company owned beneficially and of
record by such Former Stockholder; (iv) except as may be set forth in the Purchaser Operating Agreement, there are no voting trusts,
member agreements, proxies, or other agreements or understandings in effect with respect to the voting or transfer of such Member
Interest to which such Former Stockholder is a party or bound; (v) such Former Stockholder has not granted any rights or other
interests in or to such Member Interest to any person or entity whatsoever; (vi) such Former Stockholder has full capacity to execute
and deliver this Agreement and to consummate the Purchase Transaction; (vii) this Agreement has been duly and validly executed
and delivered by such Former Stockholder and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of him, enforceable against him in
accordance with its terms;
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(viii) no filing with, and no permit, authorization, consent, or approval of, any governmental authority or any other person or entity
is required to be made or obtained by such Former Stockholder for the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the
consummation of the Purchase Transaction; (ix) neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by such Former Stockholder
nor the consummation by him of the Purchase Transaction nor compliance by him with any of the provisions hereof will result in a
violation or breach of, or constitute (with or without due notice or lapse of time or both) a default or give rise to any right of
termination, cancellation, or acceleration under, any indenture, license, contract, agreement, or other instrument or obligation to
which he is a party or by which he or any of his properties or assets may be bound, or violate any order, writ, injunction, decree,
statute, rule, or regulation applicable to him or to any of his properties or assets; and (x) such Former Stockholder has obtained the
advice of independent counsel and tax advisors of his choice in connection with this Agreement and the Purchase Transaction or
has knowingly elected not to receive such counsel or advice.
Effective as of the Effective Date, other than in respect of any Claim (as defined below) arising out of or under this Agreement,
each Former Stockholder, on behalf of himself and his executors, administrators, beneficiaries, personal representatives, heirs,
successors, and assigns, hereby releases absolutely and forever, and irrevocably discharges, Purchaser, Live, and their respective
officers, members, stockholders, representatives, successors, and assigns (collectively, the "Purchaser/Live Released Parties"), of
and from any and all proceedings, claims, disputes, suits, disagreements, demands, damages, losses, accounts, debts, liabilities,
judgments, agreements, covenants, contracts, controversies, obligations, liens, actions and causes of action, and claims for relief of
every kind and nature whatsoever, whether at law or in equity, whether now known or unknown (the "Claims"), that such Former
Stockholder had, now has, or hereafter may have, against any of the Purchaser/Live Released Parties arising out of or under the
Purchaser Operating Agreement in respect of any act, omission, circumstance, or event that occurred on or prior to the Effective
Date.
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7. Amendment to ICF Operating Agreement.
Effective as of the Effective Date, ICG and the Former Stockholders have executed the first amendment to the ICF Operating
Agreement in the form attached as Exhibit E.
8. Amendment to Purchaser Operating Agreement.
Effective as of the Effective Date, Live and the Former Stockholders have executed the first amendment to the Purchaser Operating
Agreement in the form attached as Exhibit F.
9. Counterparts and Signatures.
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall for all purposes be deemed an original, and all of such
counterparts shall together constitute one and the same agreement. This Agreement may be executed via signatures exchanged by
facsimile or pdf, which signatures shall be as valid as an original.
10. Expenses.
All the expenses of the parties incurred in connection with this Agreement shall be borne by the Company.
11. Ratification of the Stock Purchase Agreement.
Live, Purchaser, the Company and the Former Stockholders hereby ratify the provisions of the SPA, as herein amended or finally
determined.
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12. Entire Agreement.
This Agreement, with the Exhibits hereto, the SPA, the ICF Operating Agreement as amended and the Purchaser Operating
Agreement as amended are the entire agreements among the parties hereto with the respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof
and no representations or promises not
Witness our hands and seals at the date set forth above:
Live:
Live Ventures Incorporated
By: /s/ Jon Isaac
Jon Isaac, President and Chief Executive Officer
[Corporate Seal]
Purchaser:
Marquis Affiliated Holdings LLC
By: /s/ Jon Issac
Jon Isaac, President and Chief Executive Officer
[Company Seal]
ICG:
Isaac Capital Group
By: /s/ Jon Issac
Jon Isaac,
[Corporate Seal]
The Company:
Marquis Industries, Inc.
By: /s/ Timothy A. Bailey
Timothy A Bailey, President
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Former Stockholders:
/s/ Timothy A. Bailey (L.S.)
Timothy A. Bailey
/s/ Larry Heckman (L.S.)
Larry Heckman
/s/ David Stokes (L.S.)
David Stokes
/s/ Mark Rowland (L.S.)
Mark Rowland
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Exhibit A
Wire Instructions for Cash Distribution
(attached)

Exhibit A to the Master Agreement

Timothy A. Bailey
Capital Contribution ($310,661 X 56.4875%):

$175,484.63

Wire amount for partial redemption of Interest:
($846,247 X 56.4875%):

$478,023.77

Wiring Instructions:
Name of Account:
Receiving Bank:
Address:
Bank ABA No.:
Beneficiary Bank
Routing No.:
Account No.:
Name of Account:

Rhonda Bailey and Timothy A. Bailey
Synovus Bank/Columbus Bank and Trust
1148 Broadway, Columbus, GA 31901
061100606
Cohutta Bank
061107201
1004270607
Rhonda Bailey and Timothy A. Bailey

Larry Heckman
Capital Contribution ($310,661 X 24.4207%):

$ 75,865.59

Wire amount for partial redemption of Interest:
($846,247 X 24.4207%):

$206,659.44

Wiring Instructions:
Name of Account:
Bank Name:
Address:
For Credit:
Bank ABA No.:
Bank Account No.:
Bank Contact Person:

Larry and Kay Heckman
FSG Bank NA
531 Broad Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Larry and Kay Heckman
061308592
1000066736
Heather A. Dixon
(706) 428-2518

David Lee Stokes
Capital Contribution ($310,661 X 13.1791%):

$ 40,942.32

Wire amount for partial redemption of Interest:
($846,247 X 13.1791%):

$111,527.74

Wiring Instruction:
Name of Account:
Bank Name:
Bank Address:
ABA No.:
Account No.:
Bank Contact:

David Lee Stokes and Janice Lynn Stokes
Wells Fargo
315 Wall Street
Calhoun, GA 30701
121000248
6949200544
Darlene Jones
(706) 625-6704

Mark Rowland
Capital Contribution ($310,661 X 5.9127%):

$ 18,368.46

Wire amount for partial redemption of Interest:
($846,247 X 5.9127%):

$ 50,036.05

Wiring Instructions:
Name of Account:
Beneficiary Bank:
Bank Address:
ABA No.: 121000248
Account No.:
Contact at Bank:

Mark and Melissa Rowland
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
420 Montgomery
San Francisco, CA 94104
1100110327514
Ken Kincaid
706-275-8209

Exhibit B
Wire Instructions for Closing Payment
(attached)

Exhibit B to Master Agreement
Timothy A. Bailey, Selling Stockholder
Wire amount: $847,312.50 (56.4875% X $1,500,000)
Wiring Instructions:
Name of Account:
Receiving Bank:
Address:
Bank ABA No.:
Beneficiary Bank:
Routing No.:
Account No.:
Name of Account:

Rhonda Bailey and Timothy A. Bailey
Synovus Bank/Columbus Bank and Trust
1148 Broadway, Columbus, GA 31901
061100606
Cohutta Bank
061107201
1004270607
Rhonda Bailey and Timothy A. Bailey

Larry Heckman, Selling Stockholder
Wire Amount: $366,310.50 (24.4207% X $1,500,000)
Wiring Instructions:
Name of Account:
Bank Name:
Address:
For Credit:
Bank ABA No.:
Bank Account No.:
Bank Contact Person:

Larry and Kay Heckman
FSG Bank NA
531 Broad Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Larry and Kay Heckman
061308592
1000066736
Heather A. Dixon
(706) 428-2518

David Lee Stokes, Selling Stockholder
Wire amount: $197,686.50 (13.1791% X $1,500,000)
Wiring Instruction:
Name of Account:
Bank Name:
Bank Address:
ABA No.:
Account No.:
Bank Contact:

David Lee Stokes and Janice Lynn Stokes
Wells Fargo
315 Wall Street, Calhoun, GA 30701
121000248
6949200544
Darlene Jones
(706) 625-6704

Mark Rowland, Selling Stockholder
Wire Amount: $88,690.50 (5.9127% X $1,500,000)
Wiring Instructions:
Name of Account:
Beneficiary Bank:
Bank Address:
ABA No.:
Account No.:
Contact at Bank:

Mark and Melissa Rowland
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
420 Montgomery
San Francisco, CA 94104
121000248
1100110327514
Ken Kincaid
706-275-8209

Exhibit C
Form of Live Note
(attached)

Promissory Note
(Fixed Rate of Interest)
U.S.$500,000.00

November 30, 2015

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Live Ventures Incorporated, a Nevada corporation ("Obligor"), promises to pay to the order of
Timothy A. Bailey, Larry Heckman, David Stokes, and Mark Rowland, Georgia residents (and hereinafter, together with any holder hereof,
called "Holders"), at 2743 G.I. Maddox Parkway, Chatsworth, GA 30705 (or at such other place as the Holders may designate in writing to
Obligor) and proportionately in accordance with the percentage interests set forth hi Schedule I hereto, the principal amount of U.S. Five
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00). This Promissory Note (this "Note") is being delivered pursuant to that certain Agreement, dated
as of the date hereof, by and among Obligor, the Holders, and the other parties named therein, pursuant to which, among other things,
Obligor purchased all of the equity interests held by Holders in Marquis Affiliated Holdings LLC, with a portion of the purchase price
therefor being paid pursuant to this Note.
Obligor shall pay interest (calculated on the basis of a year of three hundred sixty (360) days and the actual number of days
elapsed) on the unpaid balance of principal hereof from time to time outstanding, from the date hereof until the principal balance is paid hi
full, at a fixed rate of two percent (2.00%).
On February 1, 2016, this Note shall mature and Obligor shall pay to Holders, proportionately in accordance with the percentage
interests set forth in Schedule I hereto and by wire transfer in immediately available funds to accounts designated by the Holders in writing,
the principal and accrued interest under this Note.
This Note may be prepaid at any time
Principal and interest on this Note shall be payable and paid in lawful money of the United States of America.
Time is of the essence of this Note and, in case this Note is collected by law or through an attorney at law, or under advice
therefrom, Obligor agrees to pay all costs of collection, including reasonable out-of-pocket attorneys' fees and not statutory attorney's fees
authorized by O.C. G.A. 13-1-11 if collected by or through an attorney.
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In the event of a default in any payment to the Holders, Holders may declare the entire balance due under this Note immediately due
and payable.
This Note is secured by an Equity Interests Pledge Agreement between Obligor and Holders of even date, and a default in that
agreement shall be a default under this Note.
The provisions of this Note shall be construed and interpreted and all rights and obligations of the parties hereunder determined in
accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Obligor has caused this Note to be executed, sealed and delivered in Georgia, as of the day and year
first above written.
Obligor:
Live Ventures Incorporated
By:__________________
Jon Isaac, President and Chief Executive Officer
[Corporate Seal]
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Schedule I
Name of Stockholder
Timothy Bailey
Larry Heckman
David Stokes
Mark Rowland

Percentage Interest
56.4875%
24.4207%
13.1791%
5.9127%
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Exhibit D
Form of Equity Interests Pledge Agreement
(attached)

EQUITY INTERESTS PLEDGE AGREEMENT
This Equity Interests Pledge Agreement (hereinafter called "Agreement") is made effective as of November 30, 2015 (the
"Effective Date"), by and between Live Ventures Incorporated, a Nevada corporation, (hereinafter called "Pledgor"), and Timothy A. Bailey
("Bailey"), Larry Heckman, David Stokes, and Mark Rowland, Georgia residents (hereinafter, in the aggregate, "Pledgees"), and their
respective heirs, successors and assigns.
Witnesseth:
Whereas, pursuant to that certain Agreement, dated as of the Effective Date (the "Master Agreement"), by and among Pledgor,
Pledgees, and the other parties named therein, Pledgor (i) purchased all of the equity interests held by Pledgees in Marquis Affiliated
Holdings LLC and (ii) executed and delivered that certain Promissory Note, dated as of the Effective Date (the "Note"), to the Pledgees in
the principal amount of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) for payment of a portion of the purchase price for such equity interests;
and
Whereas, the parties desire to secure Pledgor's obligations under the Note to Pledgees pursuant to this Agreement;
Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties hereto have agreed and by these presents do agree as
follows:
To secure Pledgor's obligations to Pledgees under the Note, Pledgor hereby grants, and Pledgees hereby receive, a security
interest in the equity interests represented by the certificate identified on Exhibit A attached (the "Equity Interests"), in proportion to the
percentage interests set forth on Schedule I hereto, and with the execution of this Agreement, Pledgor has delivered the original equity
interest certificate representing the Equity Interests, with a blank power of endorsement in favor of Pledgees, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are herewith acknowledged, and Pledgees shall hold the certificate representing the Equity Interests, which shall remain pledged to
the Pledgees until Pledgor's obligations to Pledgees under the Note have been satisfied.
Subject to the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the Pledgees set forth in the Master Agreement, Pledgor
represents, wan -ants, and covenants that its owns the Equity Interests, free and clear of any liens other thanthe liens set forth in this
Agreement, and has not granted, conveyed, transferred or hypothecated any rights in the Equity Interests to any other person.
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The Pledgees agree that, unless an event of default shall have occurred and be continuing, the Pledgor may (i) vote and give
consents, ratifications and waivers with respect to the Equity Interests and (ii) receive and retain all dividends and other distributions with
respect to the Equity Interests.
Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any event of default under the Note, Pledgees shall have all rights inuring to
Pledgees under the Uniform Commercial Code in effect in the State of Georgia.
An event of default shall mean a default in the terms under the Note.
Expenses of retaking, holding, selling or the like, due to an event of default, including Pledgees' reasonable out-of-pocket
attorneys' fees and not statutory attorney's fees authorized by O.C.G.A. 13-1-11, if collected by and through an attorney of law, shall be paid
by Pledgor.
Pledgor hereby appoints Bailey, as the representative of the Pledgees, as its attorney-in-fact, and this power, being coupled with
an interest, is and shall be irrevocable while Pledgor's obligations under the Note are outstanding. Upon the occurrence and during the
continuance of any event of default under the Note, Bailey, as the representative of the Pledgees and as Pledgor's attorney-in-fact, may, in
addition to all of the remedies afforded Pledgees under this Agreement or the Note, exercise any right of Pledgor in the Equity Interests.
No waiver of any rights or powers of Pledgees or consent by them shall be valid unless in writing signed by all of the Pledgees.
The rights and powers herein given to Pledgees are in addition to all other rights arising under the Note.
Upon the satisfaction of Pledgor's obligations under the Note, Pledgees shall duly assign, transfer, and deliver the certificate
representing the Equity Interests to the Pledgor in the form received and, if requested by Pledgor, execute and deliver to Pledgor a proper
instrument or instruments acknowledging the satisfaction of the Note and termination of this Agreement.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Georgia.
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This Agreement, the Note, the Master Agreement and the contemporaneous deliveries described in the Master Agreement are the
entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof and no representations not included herein or
therein have been made or relied upon by any party in reaching this Agreement.
WITNESS our hands and seals the day and year first above written.
PLEDGOR:
Live Ventures Incorporated
By:
Jon Isaac, President and Chief Executive Officer
[Corporate Seal]
pPLEDGEES:
(L.S.)
Timothy A. Bailey
(L.S.)
Larry Heckman
(L.S.)
David Stokes
(L.S.)
Mark Rowland
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Schedule I
Pledgee
Bailey
HecKMan
Stokes
Rowland

Percentage Interest
11.298%
4.884%
2.636%
1.182%
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Exhibit A
Equity Interest Certificate
Certificate
No. 6

Member
Live Ventures Incorporated

Percentage Interest
20.000%

Exhibit E
Amendment to ICF Operating Agreement
(attached)

Amendment to the Operating Agreement of
Isaac Capital Fund 1, LLC
This Amendment to the Operating Agreement of Isaac Capital Fund I, LLC, this "Amendment", is made effective as of November
30, 2015 (the "Effective Date"), by and among the Isaac Capital Group (the "ICG Member"), Timothy A. Bailey, a Georgia resident
("Bailey"), Larry Heckman, a Georgia resident ("Heckman"), David Stokes, a Georgia resident ("Stokes"), and Mark Rowland, a Georgia
resident ("Rowland") (with Bailey, Heckman, Stokes, and Rowland, in the aggregate, the "Marquis Members"), and Isaac Capital Fund I,
LLC, a Georgia limited liability company (the "Company"), and their respective heirs, successor and assigns.
Witnesseth:
Whereas, the parties entered into an Operating Agreement dated July 6, 2015 (the "Operating Agreement") for the Company;
Whereas, Live and the Marquis Members, among other parties, have entered into that certain Agreement, dated as of the Effective
Date (the "Master Agreement"), pursuant to which they have agreed, among other things, (i) upon a binding and conclusive determination
of a post-closing purchase price adjustment in an aggregate amount of $310,661 owed by Purchaser (as defined in the Master Agreement)
to the Marquis Members pursuant to the SPA (as defined in the Master Agreement) and (ii) that such purchase price adjustment amount
will be paid by a principal advance of $310,661 pursuant to the terms of the Note and funded with additional Capital Contributions by the
Marquis Members to the Company in an aggregate amount of $310,661; and
Whereas, the parties desire to amend the Operating Agreement to accomplish their respective objectives;
Now, therefore, in consideration of the aforementioned premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties have agreed and by these presents do agree as follows:
1. Capitalized Terms Under the Operating Agreement.
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The parties hereby agree that all capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall have the meanings ascribed to those capitalized
terms in the Operating Agreement.
2. Additional Capital Contribution by the Marquis Members.
Effective as of the Effective Date, the Marquis Members have made additional Capital Contributions to the Company in the
aggregate amount of $310,661, allocated among the Marquis Members as set forth in Exhibit A.
3. Increase in the Note.
Effective as of the Effective Date, the Company has lent an additional $310,661 to the Borrowers pursuant to the terms of the
Note.
4. Deletion of Section 3.02 (Additional Capital Contributions) of the Operating Agreement.
Section 3.02 of the Operating Agreement is deleted in its entirety.
5. Modification of Article 5 of the Operating Agreement.
Article 5 of the Operating Agreement is deleted in its entirety. The definitions of Distributable Cash and Tax Distributions in the
Operating Agreement are deleted in their entirety.
A new Article 5 is substituted in its entirety as follows:
"5.01 Distributions of Interest on the Restated Note.
Quarterly, the Company shall distribute the interest received on the Note to the Members in proportion to their Percentage
Interests.
5.02 Distributions of Principal on the Restated Note and Redemption of Marquis Members' Interests.
As payments of principal are received on the Note by the Company, the Company shall pay those principal payments to the
Marquis Members as a partial redemption of their Interests allocated 2 proportionately among the Marquis Members
according to their respective Percentage Interests until the Interests of the Marquis Members have been fully redeemed before
distributing any principal payments to the ICG Member."
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The parties agree that the prepayment of principal received on or around the Effective Date in connection with the execution of
this Amendment in the amount of $846,247 shall be distributed to the Marquis Members pursuant to wire transfer instructions as
set forth in Exhibit A.
6. Modification of Section 6.01 (Management of the Company) of the Operating Agreement.
Section 6.01 of the Operating Agreement is deleted in its entirety and a new Section 6.01 is substituted in its entirety as follows:
"6.01 Management of the Company. Except for those matters for which the approval or consent of the Members is
expressly required by this Agreement (including Section 6.02) or by nonwaivable provisions of the Act, the business and
affairs of the Company shall be managed, operated, and controlled by a manager (the "Manager"). The initial Manager shall
be Bailey. Any successor Manager shall be appointed by a majority of the Marquis Members until they as a group no longer
hold any Interests in the Company. The Manager shall serve without compensation. The Manager shall have, and is hereby
granted, the full and complete power, authority, and discretion for, on behalf of, and in the name of the Company, to take such
actions as he may in his sole discretion deem necessary or advisable to carry out the purposes of the Company as set forth in
Section 2.06, subject only to the terms of this Agreement (including Section 6.02) and the Act. Except as required by the Act
or other applicable law, and except as expressly set forth in this Agreement (including Section 6.02), matters shall not be
referred to the Members or require their vote thereon."
7. No Amendment of Operating Agreement without Unanimous Member Approval.
No further amendment of the Operating Agreement shall be effective unless adopted by all the Members.
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8. Controlling Document.
In the event that there are inconsistencies between this Amendment and the Operating Agreement, this Amendment shall control.
9. Counterparts and Signatures.
This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall for all purposes be deemed an original, and all of such
counterparts shall together constitute one and the same agreement. This Amendment may be executed via signatures exchanged by
facsimile or pdf, which signatures shall be as valid as originals.
10. Expenses.
All the expenses of the parties incurred in connection with this Amendment shall be borne by Marquis Industries, Inc.
11. Ratification of Operating Agreement.
The parties hereby ratify the provisions of the Operating Agreement as herein amended.
12. Entire Agreement.
This Amendment with the Exhibits hereto and the Operating Agreement are the entire agreement between the parties with respect
to the subject matter hereof and thereof and no representations or promises not included herein or therein have been made or relied
upon by any party to this Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Amendment effective as of the Effective Date.
Isaac Capital Fund I, LLC
By:______________
Name: Timothy A. Bailey
Title: Manager
[Company Seal]
Isaac Capital Group
By:______________
Name: Jon Isaac
Title:_____
[Corporate Seal]
Marquis Members:
_______________(L.S.)
Timothy A. Bailey
_______________(L.S.)
Larry Heckman
_______________(L.S.)
David Stokes
________________(L.S.)
Mark Rowland
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Exhibit A
Allocations of Additional Capital Contributions and Wire Instructions
(attached)

Exhibit A to the Amendment to the ICE Operating Agreement

Timothy A. Bailey
Capital Contribution ($310,661 X 56.4875%):

$175,484.63

Wire amount for partial redemption of Interest:
($846,247 X 56.4875%):

$478,023.77

Wiring Instructions:
Name of Account:
Receiving Bank:
Address:
Bank ABA No.:
Beneficiary Bank:
Routing No.:
Account No.:
Name of Account:

Rhonda Bailey and Timothy A. Bailey
Synovus Bank/Columbus Bank and Trust
1148 Broadway, Columbus, GA 31901
061100606
Cohutta Bank
061107201
1004270607
Rhonda Bailey and Timothy A. Bailey

Larry Heckman
Capital Contribution ($310,661 X 24.4207%):

$ 75,865.59

Wire amount for partial redemption of Interest:
($846,247 X 24.4207%):

$206,659.44

Wiring Instructions:
Name of Account:
Bank Name:
Address:
For Credit:
Bank ABA No.:
Bank Account No.:
Bank Contact Person:

Larry and Kay Heckman
FSG Bank NA
531 Broad Street
Chattanooga, TN 37402
Larry and Kay Heckman
061308592
1000066736
Heather A. Dixon
(706) 428-2518

David Lee Stokes
Capital Contribution ($310,661 X 13.1791%):

$ 40,942.32

Wire amount for partial redemption of Interest:
($846,247 X 13.1791%):

$111,527.74

Wiring Instruction:
Name of Account:
Bank Name:
Bank Address:
ABA No.:
Account No.:
Bank Contact:

David Lee Stokes and Janice Lynn Stokes
Wells Fargo
315 Wall Street
Calhoun, GA 30701
121000248
6949200544
Darlene Jones
(706) 625-6704

Mark Rowland
Capital Contribution ($310,661 X 5.9127%):

$ 18,368.46

Wire amount for partial redemption of Interest:
($846,247 X 5.9127%):

$ 50,036.05

Wiring Instructions:
Name of Account:
Beneficiary Bank:
Bank Address:
ABA No.:
Account No.:
Contact at Bank:

Mark and Melissa Rowland
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
420 Montgomery
San Francisco, CA 94104
121000248
1100110327514
Ken Kincaid
706-275-8209

Exhibit F
Amendment to Purchaser Operating Agreement
(attached)

AMENDMENT TO THE OPERATING AGREEMENT OF
MARQUIS AFFILIATED HOLDINGS LLC
This Amendment to the Operating Agreement (this "Amendment") of Marquis Affiliated Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (the "Company"), shall be effective at 12:01 a.m., Eastern Standard Time, on November 30, 2015 (the "Effective
Date"), by and among the Company, Live Ventures Incorporated, a Nevada corporation (the "Live Member"), Timothy A. Bailey, a
Georgia resident ("Bailey"), Larry Heckman, a Georgia resident ("Heckman"), David Stokes, a Georgia resident ("Stokes"), and Mark
Rowland, a Georgia resident ("Rowland") (with Bailey, Heckman, Stokes, and Rowland, in the aggregate, the "Marquis Members"), and
their respective heirs, successors and assigns.
Whereas, the parties executed an Operating Agreement for the Company effective on July 6, 2015 (the "Operating Agreement");
and
Whereas, by contemporaneous agreement executed and delivered by the parties effective as of the Effective Date, the Live
Member has purchased all of the Interests held by the Marquis Members for a purchase price of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), with
One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000) paid in cash and the balance financed pursuant to a Promissory Note, dated
effective as of the Effective Date (the "Note"), by the Live Member in favor of the Marquis Members and secured by the Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement, dated effective as of the Effective Date (the "Equity Interest Pledge Agreement"), by the Live Member in favor of the
Marquis Members; and
Whereas, the parties desire to amend the Operating Agreement to accomplish their respective objectives;
Now, therefore, in consideration of the aforementioned premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties have agreed and by these presents do agree as follows:
1. Capitalized Terms Under the Operating Agreement.
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The parties hereby agree that all capitalized terms used but not defined in this Amendment shall have the meanings ascribed to
those capitalized terms in the Operating Agreement.
2. New Definitions.
Article 1 of the Operating Agreement is hereby amended to add the following new defined terms:
"Equity Interest Certificates" means the certificates, in the form approved by the Board, representing the Percentage Interests
of the Initial Members as set forth in Schedule A to the Operating Agreement.
"Note" means that certain Promissory Note, dated November 30, 2015, in the original principal amount of $500,000, payable
by the Live Member to the Marquis Members.
The parties acknowledge that the Equity Interest Certificates have been duly executed and delivered to the Initial Members, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged.
3. Modification of Section 6.01(b) (Board Composition).
The opening sentence of Section 6.01(b) of the Operating Agreement is stricken in its entirety and a new opening sentence is
substituted as follows:
"Section 6.01(b) Board Composition. For so long as the Marquis Members own their Interests or the Note is unpaid, the
Board shall consist of three directors, comprised as follows:"
4. Modification to Section 9.02(c).
A new sentence shall be added to the end of Section 9.02(c) of the Operating Agreement to read as follows:
"While the Note remains unpaid, Equity Interest Certificate No. 6 in the name of the Live Member and representing all of the
Interests purchased by the Live Member from the Marquis Members, constituting 20% of all of the Percentage Interests in the
Company, has been pledged to the Marquis Members pursuant to the terms of an Equity Interest Pledge Agreement."
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5. Controlling Document.
In the event that there are inconsistencies between this Amendment and the Operating Agreement, this Amendment shall control.
6. Counterparts and Signatures.
This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall for all purposes be deemed an original, and all of such
counterparts shall
together constitute one and the same agreement. The Agreement may be executed via signatures exchanged by facsimile or pdf,
which signatures shall be as valid as originals.
7. Expenses.
All the expenses of the parties incurred in connection with this Amendment shall be borne by Marquis Industries, Inc.
8. Ratification of Operating Agreement.
The parties have ratified the provisions of the Operating Agreement as herein amended.
9. Entire Agreement.
This Amendment and the Operating Agreement are the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter
hereof and thereof and no representations or promises not included herein or therein have been made or relied upon by any party to
this Amendment.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Amendment effective as of the Effective Date.
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The Company:
Marquis Affiliated Holdings LLC
By:______________
Name: Jon Isaac
Title: Chief Executive Officer
[Company Seal]
Live Member:
Live Ventures Incorporated
By:______________
Name: Jon Isaac
Title: Chief Executive Officer
[Corporate Seal]
Marquis Members:
_______________(L.S.)
Timothy A. Bailey
_______________(L.S.)
Larry Heckman
_______________(L.S.)
David Stokes
________________(L.S.)
Mark Rowland
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Schedule A to Amendment to MAH Operating Agreement
Equity Interest Certificate No. 1
Marquis Affiliated Holdings, LLC
A Delaware Limited Liability Company
This Equity Interest Certificate No. 1 certifies that Live Ventures Incorporated, a Nevada corporation, has contributed Four
Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars ($4,800,000) to the initial capital of the Company and is the owner of an eighty percent (80%)
Percentage Interest in the Company, which is fully paid and non-assessable.
The Interests represented by this Equity Interest Certificate No. 1 are not freely transferrable and only may be transferred hi
accordance with the terms of the Operating Agreement for the Company, dated as of July 6, 2015 (the "Operating Agreement"), among the
Company and its Members, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference. A copy of the Operating Agreement may be inspected
at the principal offices of the Company. Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings given to them in the Operating
Agreement.
Effective as of the 6 th day of July, 2015.

________________
Jon Isaac, Chief Executive Officer
[Corporate Seal]

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Jon Isaac, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Live Ventures Incorporated (the “registrant”);
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
Dated: February 16, 2016

/s/ Jon Isaac
Jon Isaac
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Jon Isaac, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Live Ventures Incorporated (the “registrant”);
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
Dated: February 16, 2016

/s/ Jon Isaac
Jon Isaac
Principal Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32
CERTIFICATION OF THE
PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Jon Isaac, the President and Chief Executive Officer of Live Ventures Incorporated, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Quarterly Report of Live Ventures Incorporated on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2015 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of Live Ventures Incorporated.
Dated: February 16, 2016

/s/ Jon Isaac
Jon Isaac
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer)

